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MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Council Members 
 
FROM: John Shurts 
 Jim Ruff 
 
SUBJECT: Fish Passage Center Oversight Board 
 
 
 At the March Council meeting in Boise, the Council settled on a proposal for reformulating 
the membership categories of the Fish Passage Center Oversight Board.  The staff released that 
proposal for public review and comment, asking for comments by April 6.  A copy of the request 
for comments is attached, to remind you of the proposal. 
 
 Packet day for the April meeting in Libby fell before the date we asked for comments.  Once 
all the comments are in, we will summarize the comments and provide a staff recommendation. 
 
 Three points to ponder until then:  First, we have received more than a dozen comments so 
far, which we have circulated as they have come in.  Most have been from representatives of 
fishing interests.  CBFWA provided its consensus comments to the Council yesterday evening.  
A copy of the CBFWA comments are attached.  None of the commenters so far have supported 
the Council’s proposal.  And most have asked the Council to take more time and for direct 
interaction with the Council before the Council decides on the makeup of the Oversight Board.  
We expect a number of the comments still to come will ask the same thing. 
 
 We understand that the Council may be reluctant to delay further the decision on the 
Oversight Board, but at the same time the Council is going to have to grapple with these requests 
for more regional discussion before deciding to reconstitute the membership of the Board.  The 
next point we make may be a way of sidestepping this point, a way of moving forward while also 
continuing discussion of the ultimate makeup of the Board. 
 
 Second, the more we think about this issue, the more it seems to us that the Oversight Board 
structure may be wrong for the purposes the Oversight Board is to fulfill.  The purpose of the 
Board is to have an oversight group focused on ensuring that the Fish Passage Center faithfully 
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endeavours to implement the provisions of the Council’s program in an accountable way and to 
assure that the Center’s work is compatible with the regional data management system.  This 
seems primarily a management oversight function that a Council standing committee and 
Council staff could undertake, with some technical assistance from staff and the relevant fish and 
wildlife mangers and the use of the ISAB mainstem peer review function.  What is not needed to 
fulfill this oversight mission is a large stakeholder representative board, because this work is not 
about setting or overseeing policy for the Fish Passage Center.  The policy has been established 
already in the Fish and Wildlife Program.  After talking this over with Council Member 
Measure, we are considering discussing with all the members an alternative approach that would 
have the Council begin by naming a small oversight committee -- perhaps two Council members 
and the Executive Director of CBFWA, or some similar configuration -- to assume the functions 
of the Board to begin with, and then let this group begin to work and later propose whether to 
extend the oversight board and to what extent. 
 
 Third, the CBFWA comments include (as the main comment) a request that the Council 
recommend to Bonneville that it implement the “CBFWA Fish Passage Technical Services” 
proposal CBFWA developed during the FY2007-09 project review process.  This would bring 
the Fish Passage Center directly under CBFWA and its Executive Director.  The Council could 
not decide on this request at the April meeting.  But if the Council is interested in this proposal, 
we could build it into the FY08 start-of-year budget review process later in the spring.  There 
may be good reasons to be interested:  The Council’s program already calls for the Fish Passage 
Center and its manager to be directly subordinate to the Executive Director of CBFWA, and for 
CBFWA and its Executive Director to play other roles with regard to the Center.  Implementing 
these provisions has not been possible given that the contract relationship runs to a different 
entity, the Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission.  Also, the CBFWA proposal has promise 
of providing improved implementation by the Center of all the water measures in the Council’s 
program, including the reservoir operating criteria to benefit important resident fish populations. 
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Comment on this proposal

Send comments by April 6, 2007 to:

Jim Ruff
Northwest Power & Conservation Council
851 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 1100
Portland, Oregon  97204-1348
503-222-5161   fax 503-820-2370
or email jruff@nwcouncil.org

home
about us fish &

wildlife energy news reports &
papers contact us   search  

Draft Proposal and Invitation to Comment: 
Revising the Membership Categories for
the Fish Passage Center Oversight Board

March 15, 2007

TO: Interested Parties 

FROM: John Shurts, General Counsel
Jim Ruff, Manager, Mainstem Passage and River Operations

The Northwest Power and Conservation Council is seeking 
comment on a proposed change in the membership categories for the Fish Passage Center Oversight Board.
The Council intends that the Oversight Board resume its functions. The Council's Columbia River Fish and
Wildlife Program describes the nature and duties of the Oversight Board as follows:

The Council has established an oversight board for the Fish Passage Center (Center), with
representation from NOAA Fisheries, state fish and wildlife agencies, tribes, the Council, and others
to provide policy guidance for the Center and to ensure that the Center carries out its functions in
a way that assures regional accountability and compatibility with the regional data management
system. The oversight board's responsibilities will include conducting an annual review of the
performance of the Center and developing a goal-oriented plan for next year's operation. The
Center shall prepare an annual report to the oversight board and the Council, summarizing its
activities and accomplishments. There will be no other oversight board or board of directors for the
Center. 

The Council plans to reconstitute the membership of the Oversight Board before the Board resumes its work.
The current membership categories are as follows:

one Council member or Council representative
one member representing NOAA Fisheries
one member representing the upper Columbia River Basin tribes
one member representing the lower Columbia River Basin tribes
one member representing the state fish and wildlife managers
one member from the scientific community
two members from the public at large

At its April meeting in Libby, Montana, the Council will decide on a revised set of membership categories and
approve a letter requesting nominations for people to fill these slots. The Council proposes to change the
Oversight Board membership to the following:

one Council member or Council representative, who will be the Chair
one member representing NOAA Fisheries
one member representing the upper Columbia River Basin tribes
one member representing the lower Columbia River Basin tribes
two members representing the state fish and wildlife agencies, one from the upper Columbia River Basin
(ID/MT) and one from the lower Columbia River Basin (OR/WA)
two members from the scientific community

The Council is interested in appointing members who have a scientific or technical background in disciplines
related to functions which the Center performs. The Council will evaluate nominees for all positions on that
basis. 

The Council requests comment on this proposed change in the membership categories for the Fish Passage
Center Oversight Board. See sidebar on how to comment.








